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East façade.

HISTORICAL SUMMARY

A

1 In the 16th century João de Barros (1919: 77) was still echoing this tradition, stating that the “Commendation of Biade, 
of Saint John of Rhodes, (...) which was, once, a monastery with Monks”. And he adds, in a critical tone, “and according to the 
information I have, I believe that the first ones who ordered the Monks to leave some of these Monasteries were the Knights 
Templar, who were provided with their sustenance and, not content with what had been given to them, demanded more and, 
for that reason, lost everything at the time of Pope Clement V (...)”.

2 It reads: Sub Era 1197 Obiit Flamula Dei Miona Doldia Gomez. That is, if, in the Middle Ages, the inverted “2” is read as a 
5 and the “X” in inverted commas means 40 for deriving from connection to the Roman number XL, then we should add both 
numbers and, therefore, obtain the year 90. By subtracting the 38 years of the formula for changing from the Era of Caesar to 
the Birth of Christ, we obtain the year 1159.

Aerial view.
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North façade. Nave. Funerary inscription of Dórdia Gomes.

3 Mário Barroca (2000: 269-270) is more prone to identify the wife of Garcia Rodrigues as a namesake of the “Miona” 
buried in Veade in 1159.

4 Close to the Church, to the south of the churchyard, there are two Medieval tomb chests, currently used as water tanks. 
However, their existence draws our attention to the importance that the Church of Veade had or for the people that had 
themselves buried there during the Romanesque Period. 

5 Published and transcribed in Lopes (2008: 220).
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6 José Anastácio de Figueiredo (1800: 502-503) mentions several names of familiars of this Church who gave up their rights 
over it; these were found in the documents from the bailiff ship of Leça. We should note that the inquiries themselves mention 
the “nepotes Domne Durdie” as the holders, surely through inheritance, of the rights over the parish of Veade (Barroca, 2000: 270).

7  Although we still do not know much about this type of structure, we suggest reading Maciel (1998).
8 Saint James of Gagos was still operating as a co-mother church in the 18th century: “Saint Mary of Veade, a Commendation 

of Malta that is attached to the [Commendation] of Moura Morta, has a Vicar, with the Order’s Habit (who presents the 
Commander), who celebrates Mass in this Church on two Sundays, and on one Sunday at the church of Gagos, which are both 
attached so that the parishioners can attend it on these days, in one place or the other, according to where the vicar is (...)” 
(Costa, 1706-1712: 146).
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Reproduction of the portrait 
of Diogo de Melo Pereira. Source: V. 
C. M. (Archive of the Ponte de Lima 
Town Council).

9 Above the inscription we find the coat of arms: a Portuguese shield, with a horizontal division over the Maltese cross; in 
the first area, we find the Melos’ coat of arms (a double golden cross with six byzants); in the second area, we find the Pereiras’ 
coat of arms (a cross fleury on an empty background). The inscription was already transcribed by Craesbeeck (1992: 350).

Commendation house (Celorico de Basto). Coat of arms.
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North and west façades.

10 Roque de Távora e Noronha (1706-1743). He was the brother of the dean of the Porto cathedral, who commissioned 
the cathedral’s building works to Nasoni in 1725.

11 Surmounting the arch that frames the portico we find the commander’s coat of arms: it is an irregular shield, perhaps 
wishing to imitate the Italian shields, quartered for Sousas (Arronches); Pintos; Fonsecas and Manuéis (although this last 
quarter is poorly depicted).



316 East façade. Portal.

12 His manor house, called the tower of Chã, was located in the municipality of Ferreiros de Tendais (Cinfães) and belonged 
to the domains of the House of Bragança ever since the latter was founded.
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North façade. Nave. Wall.

THE “NEW” CHURCH

T

13 For further information on this subject, please read Botelho (2010b).
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14 For further information on this subject, please read Botelho (2010a: 29).

Sacristy. Several Romanesque decorative elements. Public Library Prof. Marcelo Rebelo de Sousa – 
Archaeological Museum (Celorico de Basto). Capital.
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North façade. Nave. Portal. Tympanum, archivolts and capitals.

North façade. Nave. Portal.
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North façade. Nave. Portal. Bases. North façade. Nave. Portal. Capitals.

South façade. Nave. Portal.
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South façade. Nave. Traces of arches.

15 The underlines are ours.
16 “All the other altars are newly gilded, a work sponsored by the same patron” (Lopes, 2005: 230).



323

17 Regarding the coat of arms placed above the main door, the second quarter represents the Pintos; on both coats of arms 
on the collateral altars they are replaced by the Fonsecas. 

General interior view from the nave.
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Chancel. Main altarpiece.



325Nave. South wall. Altarpiece. Nave. South wall. Painting detail. Calvary.

18 The Via Crucis is associated with the theme of and devotion to Christ and His Passion and headed from the Church of 
Veade to the top of a small hill located to the east of the temple. The bases of the crosses before which Easter processions 
used to stop are still visible. At the end, there was a beautiful series of elegantly carved granite crossed marking the place of the 
Crucifixion and the sepulchre. On the last cross, which marks the location of the Tomb of the Lord, a chest stand out from the 
first register; right above the two steps we find the coffin of the Lord, a curious and somewhat eccentric allusion to the Body 
as a Treasure kept in a stone “reliquary”. 

19 The iconographic representation of the two bishops is very similar and they are only distinguishable by their attributes 
(Saint Fructuosus holds a closed book on his left hand), by the colour of their alb (Saint Blaise’s is green while Saint Fructuosus’s 
is red) and by the inscription at their feet: S. BRAS [ST. BLAISE] and S. FRVT.o. [ST. FRUCT.o.].



326 Nave. North wall. Altarpiece. Nave. North wall. Painting detail. Saint Blaise and Saint 
Fructuosus.
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South façade. Nave. Portal before the intervention carried 
out by the DGEMN (1963). Source: IHRU archive.

Churchyard. Cross from the Via Crucis.

Nave. North wall. Altarpiece. Lying Christ.

[MLB / NR]
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CHRONOLOGY

1159: the “meana” Dordia Gomes was buried in Veade;

13th century: the private Church of Veade was associated with the Guedeões lineage;

13th century (1st half): construction of the Romanesque edification of Veade, of which a few significant portions 
remain;

1220: the inquiries of King Afonso II mention the “monastery of Bialdi”, although the Church of Veade was al-
ready a parish church by then;

Before 1258: the canon Gomes Alvites, from Braga, sold the Church of Veade and all the estates to the Order of 
the Hospital;

1641: construction of the Commendation Houses, commissioned by Diogo de Melo Pereira (d. 1666);

1732: according to the inscription engraved on the main portal’s lintel, the Church of Veade was rebuilt by the 
commander friar Martim Álvaro Pinto, of the House of Calvilhe (Lamego);

18th century (2nd half): design of the Church’s contents (liturgical furniture, woodwork and imagery);

1967: restoration works in the Church of Veade;

1980-1990: restoration of the main altarpiece;

20th-21st century: improvement works on the Church’s surrounding area under the Celorico de Basto Town Coun-
cil’s responsibility;

2010: the Church of Veade becomes part of the Route of the Romanesque.
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